
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 1


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES 
 
 
 


Board of Directors SPECIAL Meeting  
May 4, 2017 
8:48 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski  
 Gaylord Schaap  
 Sukey Robb-Wilder  
 Rich Holmer 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Robb-Wilder at 8:48 p.m.   
 
 


II. PUBLIC COMMENT (8:49 p.m.)(None.) 
 
 


III. ADMINISTRATIVE (8:49 p.m.)* 
 
III-A. (8:49 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 17-08, Designation of Applicant's 


Agent Resolution for Non-State Agencies (FEMA 4308-DR); and Resolution 17-09, 
Designation of Applicant's Agent Resolution for Non-State Agencies (General).  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
Resolution 17-08, Designation of Applicant's Agent Resolution for Non-State Agencies (FEMA 
4308-DR) and Resolution 17-09, Designation of Applicant's Agent Resolution for Non-State 
Agencies (General).  Director Marquez de la Plata seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:52 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 







 2


APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. PUBLIC COMMENT (8:49 p.m.)(None.)

		III. ADMINISTRATIVE (8:49 p.m.)*

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
May 4, 2017 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Rich Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata (arr. 6:34 pm) 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Legal Counsel 
      Bruce Robinson 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Robb-Wilder at 6:30 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
None. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Robb-Wilder reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to 
approve the Consent Calendar. Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  The following 
items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 6, 2017 Board Meeting.  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 


 1







 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:32 p.m.)  Public Hearing: Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-04, Adopting Water 


Rates for FY 2017-18 and Analysis of protests received.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder 
opened the Public Hearing at 6:40 p.m.  Public comment was made by Bruce Robinson.  
Board discussion ensued, including additional comments from the GM.  Director Robb-
Wilder closed the Public Hearing at 7:02 p.m.  Board discussion ensued.  Comments 
were made by Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue.  The GM announced that 169 protests 
had been received.  Director Holmer moved to approve Resolution 17-04, Adopting 
Water Rates for FY 2017-18.  Director Marquez de la Plata seconded.  Motion carried 5-
0.   


 
V-B. (7:03 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-06, Award of contract to the lowest 


responsive bidder for the CIP 2017.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
questions and discussion ensued.  Director Lipinski moved to approve Resolution 17-06, 
Awarding the Contract for the FY 2017 Capital Improvement Project, Phase 1, to Piazza 
Construction in the Sum of $663,005, and Authorizing the General Manager Total 
Change Order Approval of $66,300 and Single Change Order Approval up to $25,000.  
Director Marquez de la Plata seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 
V-C. (7:13 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Addressing District Unfunded Actuarial Liability 


and the Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) Rate Stabilization Program.  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Direction was 
given to staff.   


 
V-D. (7:45 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Draft Budget and Draft Budget Report.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  No action 
was taken, but FY 2017-18 Budget will be considered for approval at the June meeting. 


 
V-E. (7:55 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY 2016-17 3rd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 


Operations and Capital Expenditures and County Balances.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


 
V-F. (8:03 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 17-07 Which Approves an 


Emergency Contract for Repair of a Damaged Water Line on Neeley Road and 
Declares the Emergency Situation Over.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
District Counsel Robin Donoghue provided additional comments.  Board discussion 
ensued. The Resolution was amended as follows to eliminate verbiage indicating that the 
emergency was concluded: 
 
 (1) Title: Strike the words "and Declaring the Emergency Condition Terminated" 
 (2) 8th "Whereas": Strike.  (District staff expects Piazza Construction to be 


finished....) 
 (3) 10th "Whereas": Strike  (with completion of the repairs....) 
 (4) 11th "Whereas" Strike Part E.  (There is no further need to continue....) 
 (5) 5th "Now, Therefore": Strike.  (The emergency action for repair....) 


  
 Director Marquez de la Plata moved to approve Resolution 17-07 as amended, 


Approving an Emergency Contract with Piazza Construction in an Amount not to Exceed 
$25,000.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Schaap abstained 
from voting on this item.  Comments were made by legal counsel. 


 2







 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:20 p.m.) 


 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Water Production and Sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville rainfall 
4. River Lane Property Sale 
5. 2017 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Gantt Chart 
9. Guernewood Park Resort project 
10. SCWA Fish Flow Project 
 
Board discussion ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:45 p.m.) 


 
Director Robb-Wilder announced that she would be missing the August Board meeting. 
Director Lipinski announced that he would also be missing the August Board meeting. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:46 p.m.) 
 
(None.)  
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:46 p.m.) 
1. FY 2017-18 Budget 
2. District Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAL) and PARS 
3. Water rights 
4. Neeley Road emergency 
5. Guernewood Park Resort 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:47 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


 3







 4


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:20 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:45 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:46 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


June 1, 2017, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 4, 2017 Board Meeting and the May 4, 2017 


Special Meeting 
 







B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
 
A. Discussion/Action re the Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) Rate 


Stabilization Program and its use in Addressing CalPERS Unfunded Actuarial 
Liability. (Est. time 20 min.)  


 
B. Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-10 Adopting the FY 2017-18 


Operating and Capital Improvement Budget (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 17-11, Declaring the Emergency 


Condition on Neeley Road Terminated.  (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 17-12, Approving an Agreement for 


Bond Counsel for the USDA Bond. (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion Action re District Water Rights and the SCWA Fish Flow Project (Est. 


time 10 min) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Project (Est. time 10 min.) 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 
  Title: Field Manager 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 1, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: PRESENTATION ON PUBLIC AGENCY RETIREMENT SERVICES (PARS) 
PENSION RATE STABILIZATION PROGRAM 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Receive a presentation by Mitch Barker, Executive Vice 
President of Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) on the PARS Pension Rate 
Stabilization Program and provide direction to staff.    
 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none     
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has decided to become more active in addressing its CalPERS retirement 
unfunded actuarial liability (UAL).  Last month we made an accelerated one-time 
payment on our UAL directly to CalPERS in the sum of $60,000.  An additional approach 
to addressing UAL is to try to offset CalPERS costs with higher investment returns -- 
and therefore riskier ones -- on District funds.  This is a very similar approach to our 
participation in CERBT to offset UAL in our retiree health costs.  The PARS program and 
CERBT both offer a solution to the District's limited investment choices.   
 
The PARS "Pension Rate Stabilization Program" provides a vehicle for higher returns by 
way of a IRC Section 115 Trust.  Elements of the program, or any Section 115 Trust, 
are:    


 Can be used by local governments to fund essential governmental 
functions (i.e., retiree healthcare, pension) 


 Trust is irrevocable and designed to pre-fund retirement plan obligations 
 Once contributions are placed into trust, assets from the trust can only be 


used for retirement plan purposes: 
 Reimburse District for CalPERS contributions 
 Assets can be transferred to CalPERS at anytime for pension 
 Up to 2 years of pension costs can be withdrawn for other expenses.   


 
Mitch Barker, Executive Vice President of PARS will attend the June 1 meeting to give a 
presentation on his organization and their programs.  Attached are the slides of his 
presentation.   







PARS Presentation  2  
June 1, 2017 


 
The staff vision of using PARS is fund it using a portion of District Reserves, with the 
goal of earning better returns on funds the District has no intention of using absent a 
dire emergency.  The District could then tap into a portion of investment returns (a 
"safe withdrawal rate") to defray annual retirement expenses.  
 
PARS has investment portfolios with different risk scenarios that, on average, should 
get rate of returns similar to what CalPERS aims for (4-8 percent) and much higher 
than the County funds get (currently in the 1% vicinity).  A "safe withdrawal rate" 
would be an amount less than projected returns.   
 
The cost of participating in PARS is estimated at a minimum of 55 basis points, or .55% 
annually.   
 
 


 
  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 1, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT BUDGET 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  A. Hold a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year 2017-


2018 (FY18) Budget;  
B.  Approve Resolution 17-10 which approves the FY18 
Budget 


 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  The FY18 Budget includes FY18 expenses of $4.3 million to be paid 
for by revenues of $3.2 million plus a loan/grant from USDA for approximately $1.5 
million.  The revenue above FY18 expenses will be added to reserves for future year 
capital projects.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The FY18 Budget agenda report comes with three attachments: 


 
 Resolution 17-10 which approves the FY18 Budget 
 Exhibit A. FY18 Budget Report which includes Attachment A. FY18 Detailed 


Budget which is the line item budget document with complete budget detail.   
 
The draft FY 2017-2018 (FY18) Budget was first presented at the March meeting.  
Because of staff's concern with addressing the District's CalPERS Unfunded Actuarial 
Liability (UAL) staff did not present the Budget Report, as is typically done, at the April 
meeting, but rather presented information on the UAL and that discussion was carried 
forward to the May meeting.  The result of these discussions is an added focus on 
addressing the District's UAL and the addition of USDA bond funding to complete the 
2017 CIP.     Highlights of the FY18 Budget include: 
 


 The 3% water rate increase will increase District revenues by approximately 
$69,000.   


 Supplies and Services were scrutinized to reflect actual expected costs and have 
decreased approximately $12,000 compared to the FY17 Budgeted.      







Approval of FY18 Budget  2  
June 1, 2017 


 Expenditures for Tanks and Facilities include a liner for the Rio Nido Tank and 
road improvements for the Monte Rio Tanks. 


 Identification of CalPERS UAL payments; $90,000 for FY18. 
 The transfer to the Capital Improvement Reserve Fund (CIRF) is $320,000.   
 Revenue from the USDA loan/bond. 
 Completion of the 2017 CIP Phases 2 and 3 (River Road/Old River Road Project) 


 
Exhibit A is the FY18 Budget Report.  It includes a summary of the budget detail, the 
revenues and expense pie charts and discussion of notable budget items and 
Attachment A which is the FY18 Budget detail.    This document plus information on the 
3% water rates increase will be on the District website.   


 
District Reserves 
 
The FY18 Budget includes the District Reserve Policy approved in September 2009:   
 


 Operating Budget Cash Reserve – a reserve based on 15% of the Operating 
Budget expenses to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the 
start of each fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget expenses for dealing with 
economic uncertainty, and emergencies and disaster-related expenses.   


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 
 


The proposed FY18 Budget shows a Policy Reserve of $1,236,131 and $996,299 in 
Reserves Above Policy at the end of the fiscal year.       
    
In summary, the FY18 Budget IS a funding plan will allow the District to accomplish its 
mission of providing good quality water to District customers, fund a major capital 
improvement project, and end the year in good financial shape.   
 







Resolution No. 17-10 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE FY 2017-18 OPERATING 


AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET  
  
 


 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District hereby adopts the attached FY 2017-18 Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget.  
 


      
 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of 
the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on June 1, 2017, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 







Exhibit A 


 


 
 
 


Sweetwater Springs 
Water District 


 
Annual Operating & Capital 


Improvement Budget 
 


2017-18 Fiscal Year 
(For the period July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018) 


 
Board of Directors 


 
Sukey Robb-Wilder, President 


Pip Marquez de la Plata, Vice President 
Tim Lipinski, Financial Coordinator 


Gaylord Schaap  
Richard Holmer 


 


General Manager 
Steve Mack 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 


2017-18 Fiscal Year 
Summary 


 
In Fiscal Year 2017-2018 (FY18) Sweetwater Springs Water District has budgeted 
operating expenses of $1.8 million and capital improvement expenses of $1.5 million. 
Figures 1 and 2 respectively show the distribution of these expenses and sources of 
funds to pay for these expenses.  Note that sources of funds include approximately $1.5 
million from a US Department of Agriculture (USDA) loan for capital improvements.    
 


Figure 1. FY 2018 Expenses
Total = $4.3 Million


Capital Improvements
35%


Salary and Benefits
30%


Debt Repayment
23%


Services and Supplies
12%


Figure 2.  FY18 Sources of Funds to Pay for Expenses
Total = $4.7 Million


Base Rate Charge
33%


Water Usage Charge
12%


CDRC
6%


Assessments
16%


USDA Bond
31%


Interest
0%


Rent, Other
2%







FY 2017-18 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Table 1 is a summary of the FY18 Budget which is described in detail in the following 
pages.  The FY18 Budget is similar in form and content to prior years’ budgets.  The 
FY18 Budget includes the seventh year of 3% increases for the Base Rate and Water 
Usage Charges and the fifth year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge which are designed to develop sustainable capital project funding.    


 
Table 1. FY 2017-18 OPERATING BUDGET 
 


FY 15-16
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY16-17 
BUDGET


FY 16-17
Projected  


 FY 17-18
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY18-FY17 
Budgets FY 2017-18


REVENUE
OPERATING REVENUE


1 4031 · Water Bill Revenue


2 4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Cha 261,458 269,302            270,500             278,615          9,313           3% rate increase based on projected


3 4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,457,538 1,480,664        1,484,000         1,528,520       47,856         3% rate increase based on projected


4 526,963 563,372           558,600            575,358          11,986 Flat sales, 3% increase based on projected


5 4031.1. · Total Water Sales 1,984,502            2,044,036        2,042,600 2,103,878 59,842         


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,245,959 2,313,338 2,313,100 2,382,493 69,155         


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 126,559 114,846 118,915 119,600 4,754           


8 Total Income 2,372,518 2,428,184 2,432,015 2,502,093 73,909         


9 EXPENSES
10 OPERATING EXPENSES


11 SALARY & BENEFITS


12 882,336 932,100 889,200 905,120 (26,980)        


13 5920.1 CalPERS UAL Payment 90,000 Total UAL payment; $37,000 required


14 281,186 289,789 314,769 395,180 105,391       


15 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,163,522 1,221,889 1,203,969 1,300,300 78,411         


16 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 440,732 527,910 513,860 533,000 5,090           


17 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,604,254 1,749,799 1,717,829 1,833,300 83,501         


18 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $768,264 $678,385 $714,186 $668,793 (9,592)$        


19 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 62,633 67,000 61,333 22,000 (45,000)        


20 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


21 8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 261,565 270,375 270,375 278,615 8,240           


22 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF - PY Surplus 0 0 50,392 -                     -                   


23 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 320,000 330,000 290,000 320,000          (10,000)        


24 8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000             15,000 15,000            -                   


25 8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000             25,000 25,000            -                   


26 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 621,565 640,375 650,767 638,615 (1,760)          


27 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 84,066 -28,990 2,086 8,178 37,168         
28
29 CAPITAL BUDGET
30 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
31 TOTAL REVENUE 1,413,597 1,409,302 1,370,500 2,871,615 1,462,313    


32 EXPENSES
33 TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,035,961 1,133,224 1,133,224 1,011,244 (121,980)      


34 Total Capital Expenses 1,186,021            874,000           874,000            1,488,000       614,000       


35 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,221,982 2,007,224 2,007,224 2,499,244 492,020       


36 SURPLUS/DEFICIT (808,385)             (597,922)          (636,724)           372,371          970,293       Deficit will be made up from District Reserves


37 Net Capital Funding 436,702 222,088 214,362 380,549
Net Operating Revenues + Assessments 
+CDRC+Cap Interest-Total Debt Payments


38 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
39 DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


40 Operating Budget Cash Reserve 255,061               262,174           262,174            274,995          12,821         


41 425,102               436,956           436,956            458,325          
21,369         


42 258,777               258,777           258,777            252,811          
(5,966)          


43 Capital Reserve 250,000               250,000           250,000            250,000          -                   


44    Total District Policy 1,188,940            1,207,906        1,207,907         1,236,131       28,225         


45 TOTAL Reserves EOY 2,259,513            1,648,674        1,690,142         2,232,430       
583,756       


For FY18 adding State Loan Reserve Payment 
(1000) 


46    Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,070,573            440,768           482,235            996,299          555,531       


47


48 DISTRICT FUNDS  


49 (247,764)          (825,642)    (833,764)           (334,700)         490,942          


50 425,102           425,102      436,956            458,325          33,223         


51 324,421           249,830      262,174            274,995          25,165         


52 510,829         508,777      508,777            502,811          
(5,966)          


53
93,525             


104,315      104,315            104,315          
-                   


54 180,850         198,850      198,850            213,850          15,000         


55 802,112         802,112      802,112            802,112          
-                   


56
-                   


64,284        64,284              64,284            
-                   


57 170,438               146,438 146,438         146,438          -                   


Total Benefits


Total Salary


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage 
Charges + Other


Operating Budget Reserve (10%+15% 
of Operating Exp)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt 
pmt)


CIRF (7106-0600)


OPERATING RESERVE ( 0300)


OPERATIONS (0100)


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 
(0500)


CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY 
RESERVE (1100)


BUILDING (0200)
CAP ONE AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (1200)
FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS 
(0400)


STATE LOANS (0700,0900)


3 







FY 2017-18 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


4 


2017-18 Fiscal Year (FY18) Budget 
 
The annual budget of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) allows the 
District to accomplish its mission which is to provide its customers with quality 
water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective manner and to 
manage District resources for the benefit of the community and environment. The 
District achieves its mission of producing good quality water by pumping Russian River 
underflow from five wells – 3 located at the Guerneville El Bonita well site and 2 located 
at the Monte Rio well site.  That water is then treated in two separate treatment facilities 
at the Highlands site for Guerneville and at the Monte Rio well site for Monte Rio and 
environs and distributed through approximately 68 miles of distribution pipes and 3500 
service laterals of varying lengths, and stored in 26 tanks and reservoirs.   This system is 
managed and its operation administered by the District staff of 10 full time employees.  
The District has an aggressive capital improvement program aimed at maintaining and 
improving the capital infrastructure to industry standards to deliver high quality water, 
reduce system water losses, and maintain adequate system pressure and fireflow.  The 
annual budget identifies the revenues and expenses that accomplish these tasks. 
 
The FY18 Budget follows the format established in prior years and includes the 
seventh consecutive year of a 3% increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage 
Charges, and the fifth consecutive year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge. 
 
3% increase to the Base Rate, Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge:   A principal source of revenues for the FY18 Budget is water rates paid in 
bimonthly bills by District customers (Figure 2).  In 2011 District staff did a 
comprehensive multi-year analysis to show that with small annual increases in rates the 
District can develop sustainable funding for needed capital projects to maintain District 
facilities once the current catch up capital improvement program is completed.  The 
financial analysis showed that annual 3% increases over nine years will build into 
$500,000 available annually for capital projects.   This is the seventh year of planned 
annual 3% rate increases designed to achieve the sustainable capital improvement 
program.  More information on the District’s water rates and a water rate calculator can 
be found on the District’s website at www.sweetwatersprings.com.   
 
Net Capital Funding will be approximately $400,000.  Net Capital Funding is the term 
used for estimating the amount of funding developed in the Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget for funding capital projects (line 37 in Table 1).  It is the sum of the 
operating budget surplus, annual assessments, CDRC, and capital interest minus total 
debt payments.  Net Capital Funding is budgeted to have a substantial increase because 
of decreased debt payments and reduced operations expenses, plus the effect of the 3% 
water rate increase.  We believe that Net Capital Funding should be near $500,000 for a 
sustainable capital improvement program for the District.  
 
The recent drought has  had a big impact on the budget planning in this and future 
years.  Water sales will continue to be depressed as water use habits recover from the 
drought restrictions required by the State.   Water use in FY 2017 was lower than State 
direction even though that direction has eased - approximately 83% of 2013 which is the 
State Board standard.  We expect that water use in the coming fiscal year will be at a 
similar level, and that a 3% rate increase will result in a 3% revenue increase in water 
sales.  We expect that once the drought restrictions are eased and customer use 



http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





FY 2017-18 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


5 


rebounds from those restrictions, water sales revenue will increase and the District will 
move toward reaching the $500,000 net capital funding goal.   
 
FY 2018 CIP (Table 2):  The FY18 Capital Budget has completion of Phases 2 and 3 of 
the 2017 CIP.   This will be funded by a U.S. Department of Agriculture loan of 
approximately S1.5 million.   The revised FY17 Budget includes Phase 1 of the River 
Road/Old River Project and we expect construction of this project to carryover into FY18.   
 
Addressing CalPERS retirement program Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL):  The 
FY18 Budget has a new line item to identify and make accelerated payments for the 
CalPERS UAL.  The Board has determined that this item needs special attention as it 
will continue to impact District finances for many years.  The FY18 payment is $90,000. 
 
District Reserve Policy:   The District Reserve Policy was approved in September 
2009.   The Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and 
adequately plan for its future, and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District 
Reserve Policy has the following components: 


 
 Operating Budget Cash Reserve - 15% of the annual Operating Budget 


expenses to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the start of the 
fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget for unanticipated expenses 
for economic downturn or other economic crisis, or for dealing with emergencies 
and disaster-related expenses. 


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 


 
The sum of all district funds is shown in the budget as Total Reserves End of Year 
(EOY).  This is the sum of the District discretionary funds, listed in the budget at the end 
of the year.  The difference between Total Reserves EOY and Total District Policy 
Reserves is Reserves Above District Policy.  The District goal is to keep this number 
positive.  The amount above the District Policy Reserve is the amount the District has for 
future capital projects.  The Reserves Above District Policy is a good measure of where 
we are in funding an ongoing capital program.  The FY18 Budget projects a  District 
Policy Reserve of $1,236,131 and $996,299 in Reserves Above Policy at the end of the 
fiscal year.  .   
 
 Other assumptions used to develop the Operating section of the Budget include: 


 
 Water Usage and Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction Charges will be raised 


3%.    
 Water Usage revenues are based on flat water sales and on mid-year water 


sales projections, thus the FY18 water usage revenues are estimated to 
increase by 3% over the amount projected at the end of FY17.  The drought is 
over but it will likely take a while for sales to start increasing,  thus affecting 
Water Usage charge revenue. 


 Salaries and Retirement have been adjusted to reflect year 3 of the 2015 Union 
Memorandum of Understanding.  


 
 







FY 2017-18 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


6 


Line Item Highlights of the FY18 Budget: 
 
The FY18 Operating Budget provides for ongoing costs consistent with previous 
years’ expenditures, except where identified below. 
 
The operating budget encompasses the “expenditures related to the operation, 
maintenance and repair of water facilities”, as well as the billing, collections, accounting, 
fiscal management and other overall administration. 
 
Water Bill Revenue line items have been adjusted to reflect the 3% increases on 
projected sales revenue in the Base Rate, Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) and 
Water Usage Charges based on flat water sales revenue also includes a 3% increase.  
The 3% water rate increase will increase District revenues by approximately $70,000.  
Operating interest is continued at a relatively low amount to reflect continuing lower 
interest on deposited funds. 
 
Under Expenses, Salaries are budgeted to increase approximately 2%.  Benefits are 
budgeted to increase approximately $78,000 over the projected FY17 budget largely 
because of the increased payment for the UAL.  Salaries and Benefits are a major 
District expense – approximately 70% of the FY18 Operating Budget expenses. 
 
Total Supplies and Services are approximately $5,000 higher than the FY17 approved 
budget.   Maintenance/Repair – Facilities is a big cost item in Supplies and Services 
and is budgeted at a similar amount for FY18.   Governmental Fees and Professional 
Services are budgeted to increase by $1,000.  Electricity is a big expense item and is 
budgeted to be $5,000 more than FY17 and is the major expense difference in this 
category.   
 
Fixed Asset Expenditures are lower than FY16 because we are not purchasing a truck 
this year.  There are also substantial expenses for Tank/Facilities Sites to repair the 
road up to the Monte Rio tanks, and a tank liner at the Rio Nido Tank. 
 
The Operating Budget has a surplus of approximately $670,000 which is transferred as 
revenue to the Capital Improvement Budget as Capital Improvement Revenue Fund 
(CIRF) ($320,000) Building Fund ($15,000), In-House Construction Fund ($25,000), and 
CDRC revenue ($278,615).   
 
The FY18 Capital Budget major capital expense is completion of Phases 2 and 3 of 
the 2017 CIP described in Table 2.  The CIP will be funded by a USDA bond.  
 
Capital Interest revenue has been reduced to reflect expected continuing low interest 
rates and lower fund amounts in this coming year. 
 
Capital Debt is a major expense item – approximately $1.0 million and 21% of total 
District annual expenses in FY18.  District Capital Debt includes: 
 


 General Obligation (GO) Bonds – Approximately $1.6 million remain in the USDA 
bonds that were approved to purchase the District and make needed capital 
improvements, and refinanced in part in 2013 and 2014.  Annual payment - 
$64,284, remaining principal is $1,622,728. Paid off in 2054.     







FY 2017-18 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


7 


 Cap One Bond – The District refinanced the first 20 years of the GO Bonds in 
September 2013.  Paid off in 2033, the FY18 payment is $566,508.    Remaining 
principal is $6,941,000. 


 State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 
1995-96 for needed improvements.  The smaller loan was paid off in September 
2016; the second loan will be completed in 2022.  Annual payment - $146,438.  
Remaining principal is $800,765.70. 


 Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 
improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  Annual payment - $234,012.  Remaining 
principal is $2,186,930.86.  The interest rate for this loan will reset in 2018 and 
will be reduced from 4.75% to 3.10%, reducing the annual payment by 
approximately $18,000 . 


 
District Reserves and Funds and Loan Balances show the District’s continuing 
healthy financial picture.   
 
As discussed above reserve balances are a good measure of the health of the District’s 
finances.  For FY18, District Policy Reserves are at $1,236,131 and Reserves Above 
District Policy at the end of the fiscal year are $996,299.    
 
The detailed FY18 Budget is included as Attachment A.   
 
 
 


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2017-2018 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2017    


  


Phase 1, Old River Road/River Road (GV) - replace approximately 
2200 ft of existing main and 17 services on River Rd from Rio Nido to Old 
River Road near Outlet Drive. $874,000


2018  


 


Phase 2 and 3, Old River Road/River Road (GV) - replace 
approximately 4,600 ft of existing main and 58 services on Old 
River Rd at Morningside east to the eastern section of Foothill 
Drive and include Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive. $1,488,000


 







ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2017-2018


1


FY 2017-18 OPERATING BUDGET
 


FY 15-16
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY16-17 
BUDGET


FY 16-17
Projected  


 FY 17-18
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY18-FY17 
Budgets FY 2017-18


REVENUE
OPERATING REVENUE


4031 · Water Bill Revenue


4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Cha 261,458 269,302            270,500             278,615          9,313           3% rate increase based on projected


4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,457,538 1,480,664        1,484,000         1,528,520       47,856         3% rate increase based on projected


526,963 563,372           558,600            575,358          11,986 Flat sales, 3% increase based on projected


4031.1. · Total Water Sales 1,984,502            2,044,036        2,042,600 2,103,878 59,842         


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,245,959 2,313,338 2,313,100 2,382,493 69,155         


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 -                     -                   


1700 · Interest 9,142 7,500               9,000                8,000              500              


3600 · Construction New Services 6,712 7,000               5,575                7,000              -                   


3601 · Construction Service Upgrades 100 2,000               3,240                2,000              -                   


4032 · Rent
99,219 94,346             98,000               98,600            4,254           


Crystal $1361/mo = $16,322
AT&T $6856/mo = $82,272


4040 · Miscellaneous Income
8,891 1,500               600                    1,500              -                   


USBank CC refunds
So. Cty Credit 


4117 · SCWA Reimbursement 2,495 2,500               2,500                2,500              -                   CUWCC dues reimbursed thru 2019.


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 126,559 114,846 118,915 119,600 4,754           


Total Income 2,372,518 2,428,184 2,432,015 2,502,093 73,909         


EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS


Salary


5910 · Wages 783,622 823,000 786,000 801,720          (21,280)        Union MOU includes retirement pay provisions


5912 · Overtime 28,379 34,400 33,200 33,200            (1,200)          


5916 · On-Call Pay 33,428 37,700 33,000 33,100            (4,600)          


5918 · Extra help - Contract 36,907 37,000 37,000 37,100            100              


882,336 932,100 889,200 905,120 (26,980)        


Benefits


5500 · Flex Spending -296 0 0 0 -                   


5920 · Retirement net EE share
85,337 84,460 85,000 65,100 (19,360)        


employees pay employee share; ER Rate 
8.418%; does not include UAL


5920.1 CalPERS UAL Payment 90,000 Total UAL payment; $37,000 required


5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer 15,548 16,329 15,000 15,300 (1,029)          


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLA 140,619 146,000 162,000 170,100          24,100         


5931 · Retiree health 8,140 7,000 7,644 7,680 680              Includes contribution to CERBT


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 31,838 36,000 45,125 47,000 11,000         Year 3 of high rates due to injuries


281,186 289,789 314,769 395,180 105,391       


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,163,522 1,221,889 1,203,969 1,300,300 78,411         


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications  


6040-I · Internet service 1,778 1,850               1,950                 2,350              500              
Comcast -$86.13/month: $1034
GotoMyPC $27.90/mo = $334.80
Sonic.net $47.90/mo (A) = $575


6040-C · Cell Phones 4,417 4,050               4,050                4,050              -                   


Verizon $65/mo: $780
Misc parts/holders: $200
Cell phone reimburse $255/mo - $3060


6040-P · Pagers & Radios 485 620                  620                    620                 -                   
American Messaging $35/mo: $420
Misc. parts/batteries: $200


Total Benefits


Total Salary


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage 
Charges + Other


5/24/2017







ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2017-2018


2


FY 15-16
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY16-17 
BUDGET


FY 16-17
Projected  


 FY 17-18
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY18-FY17 
Budgets FY 2017-18


6040-T · Telephones 14,670 17,000             17,000              17,000            -                   
Ans. Service: $2000
Phones: $1,200/mo: $14,400


21,350 23,520 23,620 24,020 500              


Insurances


6101 · Liability & Auto Ins. 32,175  32,200             31,000              33,000            800              


32,175 32,200 31,000 33,000 800              


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance
14,784 18,000             12,000              12,500            (5,500)          


6151 · Office Maintenance 5,717 6,200               7,200                 6,400              200              


Alarm System - $130/qtr.=$520
PacketFusion maint. contract - $1500/year
The Compute Wizard - $175/mo = $2100/year 
Copy mach. maint - 1400/yr
Call One - $1000/yr, but $200 for FY 2017-18
Landscaping - $300/yr
Misc / Other - $250


20,501 24,200 19,200 18,900 (5,300)          


Maint/Repair - Facilities -                   


6085 · Janitorial Services 7,397 8,500               8,500                8,800              300              


Altech (office Janitorial): $212/mo  = $2544
United Site Svces (port-o-lets): $260/mo = 
$3120
Sunrise Garbage $1600
Sewer - GVTP ($1200)


6,801 5,000               6,500                5,000              -                   


12,749 50,000             62,000              50,000            -                   Not accounting for" In- House Const." off-set


53,319 45,000             36,000              45,000            -                   estimating (1) well rehab


6143 · Generator Maintenance 1,814 2,000               1,000                3,200              1,200           This will be a bi-annual maitenance year.


82,080 110,500 114,000 112,000 1,500           


Miscellaneous Expenses  


6280 · Memberships 10,076 10,400             10,400              10,800            400              


USA $165
AWWA $420
CSDA $6100
CUWCC $2600 (reimbursed by SCWA)
MR Chamber -$50
RR Chamber - $150
Cal Rural $1100
WCWW $200


6303 · Claims 0 1,500               1,000                 1,500              -                   


6593 · Governmental Fees 15,772 18,400             18,400              19,000            600              


Elections costs: $1,000
Notice of Determination $230
Parcel List $265
LAFCO $6,700
Hazmat $1200
Operator license fees $400
System fees $10,500


25,848 30,300 29,800 31,300 1,000           


Office Expense -                   


6410 · Postage 11,403  16,000             18,200              16,000            -                   


Billing (2000 pieces @ $.485 X 12 months) = 
$11,650
Prop 218 mailing:  4000 X .485 = $1,940
1 extra mailing: 3600 X .485 = $1,750
Other mail 


Total Communications


Total Insurances


6100 · SCADA System


6180 · Distribution System 
Repairs


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well 
Repairs


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities


Total Miscellaneous Expenses


5/24/2017







ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2017-2018


3


FY 15-16
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY16-17 
BUDGET


FY 16-17
Projected  


 FY 17-18
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY18-FY17 
Budgets FY 2017-18


6430 · Printing Expense 4,666 7,500               7,000                 7,500              -                   


Window Envelopes $1100
Return Envelopes $950
Water Bills + Autopay $1500
Doorhangers $400
Turn Off Notices $600
Letterhead $250
Misc. Inserts $250
Prop 218 notice: $700
Checkblanks $200
Tagbooks $700


6461 · Office Supplies 5,734 4,000               4,000                4,100              100              


Supplies $3145
Plants/Landscaping $150
Christmas Tree $80
Christmas party $400
Business lunches $75
Paper products/coffee $250


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notic 759 1,100               1,100                1,100              -                   


Press Democrat $320
Legal Notices $400
Sonoma West $70
Safety Meeting Outlines $85


6890 · Computers/Software 598 3,000               3,000                3,000              -                   


Antivirus softsware $120
Cloud software $70
Misc $400
Quickbooks upgrade $300
3 workstations - $2000 (KG/LK/CMH)


6579 · Furniture
487 500                  -                       500                 -                   


23,647 32,100 33,300 32,200            100              


Operating Supplies


6300 · Chemicals 10,370 18,500             18,500 18,500            -                   


6880 · Tools and Equipment
3,750 6,000               3,400 5,000              (1,000)          Pipe locator: $1,000., Cut-off saw $900.


6881 · Safety Equipment 90 1,000               1,200 1,200              200              


14,210 25,500 23,100 24,700 (800)             


Professional Services


6083 · Laundry Service 2,207 3,000               3,500                3,000              -                   Mission $90/2 weeks = $2340


6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 13,392 15,000             14,000              14,000            (1,000)          


6570 · Consultant Fees 16,900 18,000             18,000              18,000            -                   


IEDA $12,500
Open Spatial (Mapping): $4,200
Computer Wizard (non-maintenance work) 
$800
Misc. (John Thompson?) -$500 


6610 · Legal 12,053 20,000             15,000              20,000            -                   


6630 · Audit/Accounting 30,566 34,500             35,000               35,500            1,000           


ADP $55/2 weeks = $1300
W-2s = $80
Authorize.net $500
Auditor $8,500
Harbortouch $18,000
E-check fees = $1680
West America fees $230/mo = $2760
1099 = $175
County Accounting Fees = $700
GASB 68 prep = $1,300


75,118 90,500 85,500 90,500 -                   


Rents & Leases


6820 · Equipment 967 2,000               1,000                3,300              1,300           
Postage machine $1300
Action rents: $2000


6840 · Building & Warehouse
28,045 28,800             28,800              29,790            990              5% rent increase: $2,482.50/mo = $29,790


29,012 30,800 29,800 33,090 2,290           


Transportation & Travel  


7120 · Seminars & related travel 702 2,650               2,500                 2,650              -                   
JK - $250
LK and CMH - $400 
Field: $1500, GM - $500


7201 · Vehicle Gas 19,113 23,000             21,000               23,000            -                   


Total Professional Services


Total Rents & Leases


Total Operating Supplies


Total Office Expense


5/24/2017







ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2017-2018


4


FY 15-16
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY16-17 
BUDGET


FY 16-17
Projected  


 FY 17-18
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY18-FY17 
Budgets FY 2017-18


7300 · Travel Reimbursements 5,606 6,400               6,400                6,400              -                   
SM - $50/mo = $600 (A)
KG $400/mo = $4800 (F)
CMH/LK/JK $80/mo = $960 (A)


25,421 32,050 29,900 32,050 -                   


Uniforms


6021.1 · Boots 991 1,500               1,500                1,500              -                   $205 X 7 = $1450


6021.3 · T-shirts 351 1,500               400                    1,500              -                   


6021.4 · Jackets 0 240                  240                   240                 -                   2 jackets


1,342 3,240 2,140 3,240 -                   


Utilities


7320 · Electricity 87,613 90,000             90,000 95,000            5,000            


7321 · Propane 2,415 3,000               2,500 3,000              -                   


90,028 93,000 92,500 98,000 5,000           


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 440,732 527,910 513,860 533,000 5,090           


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,604,254 1,749,799 1,717,829 1,833,300 83,501         


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $768,264 $678,385 $714,186 $668,793 (9,592)$        


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8517 · Field/Office equipment 3,327 -                      0  -                     


8573 · Vehicles 30,366 45,000             39,333 (45,000)        no new vehicle


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 28,940 22,000             22,000 22,000            -                   
Rio Nido Tank liner - $12,000                              
Monte Rio Tanks access road rehab -$10,000


8511.6 · Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 -                     -                   


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 62,633 67,000 61,333 22,000 (45,000)        


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 261,565 270,375 270,375 278,615 8,240           


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF - PY Surplus 0 0 50,392 -                     -                   


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 320,000 330,000 290,000 340,000          10,000         


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000             15,000 15,000            -                   


8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000             25,000 25,000            -                   


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 621,565 640,375 650,767 658,615 18,240         


SURPLUS/DEFICIT
84,066 -28,990 2,086 -11,822 17,168         Error in math for revised - used actuals 


instead of projected for formulas


CAPITAL BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Annual Assessment - New Services 27,949 27,000             27,000              27,000            -                   


Annual Assessment (County) 722,085 710,000           710,000            710,000          -                   


Prior Year Assessment 25,447 40,000             40,000              40,000            -                   


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 261,565 269,302           270,500            278,615          9,313           


Interest 8,367 8,000               8,000                8,000              -                   


USDA 2016 Bond 1,463,000       


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 343,184 330,000           290,000            340,000          10,000         


Transfers to In-House Constr. from Operatio 25,000 25,000             25,000              25,000            -                   


TOTAL REVENUE 1,413,597 1,409,302 1,370,500 2,891,615 1,482,313    


EXPENSES
DEBT PAYMENTS


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 64,284 64,284             64,284              64,284            -                   USDA refinance resolution
Cap One Revenue Bond 567,492 566,508           566,508            566,508          -                   


State Loan Payments 170,172 252,068           252,068            146,438          (105,630)      paid off smaller State Loan in 2016
Private Placement Loan 234,013 250,364           250,364            234,014          (16,350)        


TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,035,961 1,133,224 1,133,224 1,011,244 (121,980)      


1,463,000                                            
2016 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 124,532 -                  


2016 CIP Construction 902,052
-                  Construct Award amount plus encrhmnt permit


2017 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 123,395 92,000             92,000              
Design of 2017 CIP in FY16, CM in FY17 and 
will be carried over into FY18


2017 CIP Construction 0
732,000           


732,000            
Contract award in FY17, most construction in 
FY18


2018 CIP Non-Construction Expenses 0
215,000          


Phases 2 and 3 of 2017 CIP Bond Exp 
($50,000) and CM and Inspection


Total Transportation & Travel


Total Uniforms


Total Utilities


5/24/2017







ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2017-2018


5


FY 15-16
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY16-17 
BUDGET


FY 16-17
Projected  


 FY 17-18
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY18-FY17 
Budgets FY 2017-18


2018 CIP Construction 0
1,248,000       


Phases 2 and 3 of 2017 CIP


El Bonita Well Valut Improvements  25,000             25,000                


In-House Construction Projects 36,042 25,000             25,000              25,000            -                   Increase in this vs 6180 in Operating Budget??


Mapping Project  -                  -                   


Total Capital Expenses 1,186,021            874,000           874,000            1,488,000       614,000       


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,221,982 2,007,224 2,007,224 2,499,244 492,020       


End of FY17 Accrual Expenses


Total Expenses = Accrual Expenses 
because no FY18 Obligation in FY17


SURPLUS/DEFICIT (808,385)             (597,922)         (636,724)          392,371          990,293       Deficit will be made up from District Reserves


Net Capital Funding 436,702 222,088 214,362 380,549
Net Operating Revenues + Assessments 
+CDRC+Cap Interest-Total Debt Payments


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 255,061               262,174           262,174            274,995          12,821         


425,102               436,956           436,956            458,325          
21,369         


258,777               258,777           258,777            252,811          
(5,966)          


Capital Reserve 250,000               250,000           250,000            250,000          -                   


   Total District Policy 1,188,940            1,207,906        1,207,907         1,236,131       28,225         


TOTAL Reserves EOY 2,259,513            1,648,674        1,690,142         2,232,430       
583,756       


 For FY18 adding State Loan Reserve Payment 
(1000) 


   Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,070,573            440,768           482,235            996,299          555,531       


ACCRUAL TOTAL Reserves EOY No FY18 Obligations


   Accrual Reserves Above (below) Policy Ditto


DISTRICT FUNDS  


(247,764)          (825,642)     (833,764)          (334,700)        490,942          


425,102           425,102      436,956            458,325          33,223         


324,421           249,830      262,174            274,995          25,165         


510,829         508,777      508,777            502,811          
(5,966)          


93,525             
104,315      104,315            104,315          


-                   


180,850         198,850      198,850            213,850          15,000         


802,112         802,112      802,112            802,112          
-                   


-                  
64,284        64,284              64,284            


-                   


170,438               146,438 146,438        146,438          -                   


171,370           
146,739      146,739        146,739          


-                   


Operating Budget Reserve (10%+15% 
of Operating Exp)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt 
pmt)


CIRF (7106-0600)


OPERATING RESERVE ( 0300)


OPERATIONS (0100)


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 
(0500)


STATE LOANS RESERVES 
(0800&1000)


CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY 
RESERVE (1100)


BUILDING (0200)
CAP ONE AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (1200)
FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS 
(0400)


STATE LOANS (0700,0900)


5/24/2017





		Item V-B.1 - Appr FY 18 Budget

		Item V-B.2 - RES 17-10 Appr FY 18  Budget

		Item V-B.3 - FY 2017-18 Budget Report

		Board of Directors

		Tim Lipinski, Financial Coordinator

		General Manager



		Steve Mack

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		2017-18 Fiscal Year (FY18) Budget





		Item V-B.4 - FY 18  Budget Detail

		Combined








 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : June 1, 2017  
 
Subject: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 17-11 WHICH TERMINATES THE 


EMERGENCY FOR REPAIR OF A DAMAGED WATER LINE ON NEELEY 


ROAD 
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 17-11 which terminates the emergency 
for repair of a section of damaged water line on Neeley Road in Guerneville, CA.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
At the May meeting the Board approved Resolution 17-07 which declared an 
emergency for purposes of repairing a damaged section of water line which was in 
danger of complete failure as the road embankment was also possibly failing.  The 
emergency repair started on April 25, 2017.  The emergency repair was completed 
on May 10, 2017 and the emergency can now be declared over.   
 
The repair replaced approximately 225 feet of Transite with High Density 
Polyethylene (HDPE) and two services on Neeley Road near its intersection with 
Guernewood Road.   We have received the invoice for the work done for this 
emergency and it totals to approximately $36,000.    
 
 
 
 







Resolution No. 17-11 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT DECLARING 


THE EMERGENCY CONDITION FOR NEELEY ROAD REPAIR 


TERMINATED 
 
 


 WHEREAS, on April 19. 2017, District staff found and fixed a leak on Neeley 
Road near the westernmost intersection with Guerneville Road; and 
 


WHEREAS, at that time staff noticed road asphalt buckling and crackling at the 
leak site and many historical applications of asphalt overlays along that stretch of 
roadway; and 


 
WHEREAS, on April 20, 2017, another leak was found and fixed approximately 


20 feet from the prior leak, which repair work was done through the night and completed 
the morning of April 21, 2017; and 


 
WHEREAS, during the examination of these leaks and the condition of the 


roadway, staff became concerned with the possibility and likelihood of more leaks, with 
resulting potential loss of water, loss of water supply to the Vacation Beach area,  
roadway embankment failure, damage to surrounding property, and other  deleterious 
results; and 


 
WHEREAS, the stretch of Neeley Road that appeared  to be affected and in 


danger is approximately 225 feet in length and beyond the capability of staff to repair 
without contractual services; and 


 
WHEREAS, Piazza Construction was available to inspect the problem area 


immediately and start repair work quickly, and had the proper equipment to effect the 
needed repair, and 


 
WHEREAS,  Piazza Construction immediately commenced repairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 4, 2017, the Sweetwater Springs District Board of Directors 


passed Resolution 17-07 which found  as follows:  
 
A. Pursuant to California Public Contract Code Section 20168, the public 


interest and necessity demanded the immediate commencement of the above-described 
work on Neeley Road and the expenditure of public money for such work to safeguard 
life, health and property; 
 
 B. Pursuant to California Public Contract Code Section 22050, substantial 
evidence as set forth in the staff report prepared concerning this resolution, and as set 
forth in this resolution, established that the emergency conditions at the Neeley Road 
site would not permit delay resulting from competitive solicitation for bids for the work 
staff ordered done at such properties as described above, and such work was necessary 
to respond to the emergency conditions at the Neeley Road site;   
 
 C. Competitive bidding of the emergency work ordered at the Neeley Road 
site would have jeopardized the public health, safety and welfare, and risk further 







Termination of Emergency for Neeley Road Repair 2 
June 1, 2017 


damage to public and private property, and result in the public incurring additional 
expense, including, but not limited to, additional expense due to delay and potential 
property loss, and therefore competitive bidding of such work would not have produced 
an advantage for the public;  
 
 D. The emergency work ordered at the Neeley Road site is statutorily 
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 15269, subparagraphs (b) and 
(c), because it involves specific actions necessary to prevent or mitigate an emergency; 


 
WHEREAS, Piazza Construction finished the repairs and construction of the new 


water line section on May 10, 2017; and, 
 
WHEREAS, with completion of the repairs, staff has determined that the 


emergency conditions have been resolved; and, 
 


 NOW, THEREFORE the District Board of Directors does hereby 
resolve as follows: 
 
 1. The above recitals are true and correct and hereby declared to be 
findings of the Board of Directors of Sweetwater Springs Water District. 
 
 2. The emergency action for repair of Neeley Road is hereby declared 
terminated. 
 
 3. This resolution shall become effective immediately.   
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on June 1, 
2017, by the following vote. 


 
Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 
 
 
 
 
   


 
 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder   


President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 
 





		Item V-C - Termination of Emergency for Neeley Road

		Meeting Date : June 1, 2017 



		Item V-C.1 - Resolution 17-11 Neeley Road Emergency Termination






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 1, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: SELECTION OF BOND COUNSEL SERVICES FOR THE DISTRICT FOR 
THE USDA BOND FOR FUNDING PHASES 2 AND 3 OF THE 2017 CIP 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from the General Manager on the need 
to select Bond Counsel for the USDA Bond for funding Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 CIP, 
and provide direction to staff.     
 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none     
    
DISCUSSION: 
The District has agreed to move forward with a USDA bond to fund completion of 
Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 CIP.  Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 CIP are replacement of 
approximately 4,600 ft of existing main and 58 services on Old River Rd at Morningside 
east to the eastern section of Foothill Drive near where Old River Road intersects with 
River Road, and includes Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive.  The USDA bond will have a 
total value of approximately $1.8 million and will have a 40 year amortization.  The 
bond will cost the District approximately $70,000 per year.      
 
The bond counsel will be the lead person for completion of the USDA bond.  We 
anticipate the bond issuance date will be close to start of construction next 
spring/summer.   
 
At the June Board meeting I would like to discuss our progress so far in selecting bond 
counsel and receive direction from the Board.  Staff has interviewed 3 bond counsel 
firms recommended by USDA and Brandis Tallman which has done public financing for 
the District in the past.   At the time of writing this agenda report I have exchanged 
emails with all three firms and have had phone conversations with two of them.   All of 
the interviewed firms have experience with USDA bonds and would likely provide 
excellent service to the District.  The timing is such that we should make a decision on 
this and approve a professional services agreement with the selected bond counsel at 
the July meeting.   








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : June 1, 2017  
 
SUBJECT:  THE SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY FISH FLOW PROJECT 
DEIR AND DISTRICT WATER RIGHTS 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 


regarding the Sonoma County Water Agency draft Environmental Impact Report 
(DEIR) on its proposal to change Water Rights Decision 1610 and how that could 
affect District Water Rights and its ability to provide water supply, and provide 
direction to staff.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In mid August 2016, the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) released the long-
awaited draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) on the Fish Habitat Flows and Water 
Rights Project, also called the Fish Flow Project. This DEIR is the environmental 
document for their proposed changes to Water Rights Decision 1610 which governs how 
releases from the dams that regulate the Russian River are made and sets a range of 
required minimum flows at various points in the River.  It appears that SCWA wants to 
achieve two major actions from the proposed changes to Decision 1610: 
 


 Make permanent the flow changes ordered by the Biological Opinion for 
endangered salmonid species in the Russian River (BO), and 


 
 Change the Decision 1610 hydrologic index so that 1) it is based on Lake 


Mendocino instead of Lake Pillsbury, has more ( from 3 currently to 5) conditions 
on which to base releases, 3) takes account of the reduced inflows from the Eel 
River, and 4) has more flexibility seasonally, going from seasonal decisions to 
monthly decisions.   


 
At the March meeting the Board approved a comment letter on the DEIR and that was 
sent on March 6, 2017.   Other related actions include:   
 


 Press release shared with Mary Callahan of the Press Democrat. She received the 
information but has produced any related story that I have seen.  


 Letter sent to Supervisor Gore requesting a meeting to discuss this matter and 
giving background. 


 







Fish Flow Project DEIR and District Water Rights 2 
June 1, 2017 


 The State Board and North Coast Regional Board provided comments on the 
DEIR.  It's a big document; this is the link:  http://www.rrwpc.org/rrwpc/wp-
content/uploads/2017/03/2017.03.10-FINAL_SCWA_DEIR_Comment-Letter.pdf.  
The cover letter to the comments states that the State Board change of petition 
process will take years because of the volume of protests, and it is the 
responsibility of SCWA to make a good faith effort to resolve any protests.   


 
The District's major issue with the Fish Flow DEIR is that the project could impact the 
District's ability to provide water to its customers and this is not discussed in the DEIR.  
SCWA staff have told District staff that they believe the District does not have the right 
to divert water when the River is in a critically dry condition under current D1610 rules 
because all water passing the Hacienda Bridge would be project water - their project 
water.  This was first expressed in October 2016 in a meeting on SCWA comments on 
the District's Urban Water Management Plan.  That opinion (and that's all it is) was 
reinforced in a phone call with SCWA General Manager Grant Davis and SCWA Deputy 
General Manager Pamela Jeane on March 6, 2017, who suggested that the District 
consider entering into an emergency water contract with SCWA, similar to what the City 
of Healdsburg has done.   
 
The Fish Flow Project could affect District Water Rights from several perspectives: 
 


 D1610 allows SCWA to divert 75,000 AFY, SCWA currently diverts approximately 
50,000 AFY per year; the maximum annual diversion for SCWA has been 65,000 
AFY,  the Fish Flow reaffirms the 75,000 AFY amount, SCWA may have been 
tardy in renewing their original permits for the 75,000 AFY.  What is SCWA's real 
allowable amount of diversion?  That's a decision for the State Board and it 
should have been discussed in the DEIR.   


 
 The Fish Flow Project adds diversions to the City of Windsor and the Occidental 


Community Services District.  The Occidental diversion is of interest to us 
because it is downstream of our Guerneville diversions and across the River from 
our Monte Rio diversions and, according to the SCWA theory of Russian River 
water rights, would be senior to our existing water right.  This should be 
discussed in the DEIR.   


 
 SCWA claims to need 75,000 AFY diversions but that is not discussed in the DEIR.  


Current State law is requiring urban water suppliers to reduce water use - the 
DEIR needs to discuss how keeping a 75,000 AFY diversion that it has never 
achieved is compatible with State direction. 


 
 SCWA staff believe the District has no right to divert water when the River is 


critically dry under the current D1610 rules.  The project proposes to change the 
Hydrologic Index but does not discuss how this change would affect the District's 
ability to divert water with the proposed Index.  Which stage would affect the 
District, for example.   


 
 


 







Fish Flow Project DEIR and District Water Rights 3 
June 1, 2017 


This opinion on the District's water rights by SCWA staff is just that - an opinion.  SCWA 
does not determine water rights.  The California State Water Resources Control Board is 
in charge of the State's water rights system, considers itself a quasi-judicial body 
requiring due process, and its decisions, which frequently take years of process, are 
frequently litigated at various stages of the process.  The District has a strong water 
rights position: 
 


 The District has a license for 1137 AFY.  We've gone through the entire process 
and our priority date for that license is November 17,1975.  SCWA has permits - 
an earlier stage of the process - and apparently they did not request a renewal 
when the permit deadline (1999) was reached.  I believe the SCWA permit 
priority date is in 1968 - earlier than the District's. 


 
 The District claims pre-1914 water rights.  1914 is important because that is 


when the State's permitting system was authorized and water uses before then 
are 'grandfathered' - they don't need a permit.  Many long-term water users have 
both permits and claim pre-1914 rights (if they can make the case).  The District 
has a good claim - there were many small water companies diverting from the 
River or from River tributaries prior to 1914 and the District is the successor to 
those smaller companies.  Typically pre 1914 water rights are not quantified 
outside of litigation.   


 
 The SCWA water right may be 1968 (or some other date prior to 1975) but its 


total claimed right of 75,000 AFY has never been diverted in any year, and the 
amounts that have been diverted have changed amongst the contractors.   


 
 Area of origin.  SCWA is diverting a portion of its water out of the Russian River 


watershed.  There legal support for keeping in-basin diverters whole, regardless 
of date priority, when diverting out of basin.   


 
 D1610 in basin 10,000 AF reservation.  D1610 states that there's 10,000 AF 


reserved for other in basin diversions.  The District probably has some of that 
reservation; how  that relates to critically dry stages is not discussed in D1610; 
should be discussed in the DEIR. 


 
 Unimpaired flow.  SCWA staff claim that all water passing the Hacienda Bridge is 


project water (releases from Lake Sonoma), however an analysis by the USGS 
provided SCWA with their estimate of unimpaired flow in the summer of 1977, 
the driest year on record, and it shows unimpaired flow passing the Hacienda 
Bridge. 


 
 Local tributaries as a source.  Much of the water the District diverts is from local, 


downstream sources as evidenced by the need to provide iron and manganese 
treatment for our supplied water.   


 
 Russian River aquifer.  The Russian River is underlain by a huge aquifer which is 


a large underground river and which is the reason we need a permit/license, 
instead of just pumping water from a well like Cal Water does in the Armstrong 


 







Fish Flow Project DEIR and District Water Rights 4 
June 1, 2017 


 


Woods area.  Even if the surface water is 'project' water, during a dry period the 
District's diversions could be described as coming from the underground river.   


 
 District diversions are far downstream from SCWA's lowermost point of control, 


Hacienda Bridge.  District diversions have no impact on SCWA's regulatory 
minimum flow requirements. 


 
 The District has a licensed municipal water supply.  It's difficult to believe due 


process would allow that water supply to be turned off. 
 
 And probably others 


 
The solution to our concerns are still best done in county.  The EIR and water rights 
petitions processes will take a long time.  We should continue to take opportunities to 
talk to our elected officials to get our concerns addressed.   
 
 
 
  
 





		Meeting Date : June 1, 2017 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : June 1, 2017  
 
SUBJECT:  GUERNEWOOD PARK RESORT WATER SERVICE REQUEST TO 
THE DISTRICT 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 


regarding the Guernewood Park Resort request for water service from the District 
and provide direction to staff.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Guernewood Park Resort is a proposed hotel/motel with a reported 120 rooms and 
a restaurant which is located next to the Dubrava Condominiums.  This project has been 
an on and off proposal for many years and it apparently is on again.  Staff has had one 
meeting with a planning consultant for the project and one phone call with the 
engineering consultants.  We have received no formal written or electronic information 
on the project.  In our communications with project proponents we have asked them to 
provide us with their water needs and an engineering analysis of how our District could 
supply them with water.   
 
With earlier versions of this project Brelje and Race had done an analysis that showed 
that the District would need additional storage on upper Summit Road - 100,000 gallons 
was the estimate - to provide fire flows for the project proposed at that time.  District 
staff now believe that solution does not work well for us, but the fire flow issue is likely 
to still need resolution.  Funding for any solution needs to be determined.   
 
Our current position is that we are waiting on proposals and information from the 
Guernewood Park Resort planning team. 





		Meeting Date : June 1, 2017 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: June 1, 2017  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in April were 13,083 units (30.0 AF, (Monte Rio 
cycle) and production was 54.0 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales this month were lower 
and production was higher (32.6 AF and 46.0 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage 
is up again (25.9); we're dealing with some leaks and proactively looking.     Figure 1 shows 
sales, production and % difference since 2010 separately for the Guerneville and Monte Rio 
systems.     


 
2. Leaks:  In April we had 10 total leaks and spent 120 man-hours on them.   Those are more 


leaks and  fewer man-hours compared to the prior month and more leaks and man-hours 
compared to April one year ago (9 and 71).    Figure 2 shows service and main leaks 
separately with a total breaks line as well.  As I stated last month, even though we're 
having more leaks (and water losses) recently, the long-term trend is still downwards - 
surface leaks tend to show more when the rain and resulting runoff slows down, and we 
typically have high leak numbers in the spring months.          


   
3. Guerneville Rainfall/Russian River Flow: Rainy season is over - we may be getting 


some more rain in isolated events but the majority of rain is past - so far 61.95 inches.   
We're now on to Russian River flow - it will be interesting to see what happens this summer 
as the reservoirs are full and the tributary creeks are still running.   SCWA has asked for 
their required (by the BO) Temporary Urgency Change Petition that requests a change from 
125 cfs to 70 cfs at the Hacienda Bridge, but I doubt River flow will ever get that low this 
summer.   Figure 3 shows daily average flow at the Hacienda Bridge compared to the recent 
average and prior years.          


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  This is moving.  I forwarded you an email with the Open Space 


District process.     
 
5. 2017 CIP: In early June we will have the pre construction meeting which will kick off 


construction. 
  
6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:  There were no toilet rebate reported for May. 
 
7. In-House Construction Projects: There were two in-house projects reported for May - 


intalled a sample site on Moscow Rd (1.5 man-hours) and a service upgrade on Rio Nido Rd 
(28 man-hours). 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
June 1, 2017 
 


 
8.  Gantt Chart:  There's nothing in the Gantt Chart for June.  I need to update it for the 


coming year and we particularly need our bond process schedule.   
 
 


 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month 
Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15 Mar-16 Sep-16 Mar-17


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
June 1, 2017 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep- Mar- Sep- Mar- Sep- Mar- Sep- Mar- Sep- Mar- Sep- Mar- Sep- Mar- Sep- Mar- Sep- Mar-


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


08 09 09 10 10 11 11 12 12 13 13 14 14 15 15 16 16 17


 
 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2017 Compared to 
Earlier Years, and the 2009-15 Average, Updated May 23, 2017


0


500


1,000


1,500


2,000


2,500


3,000


3,500


4,000


4,500


5,000


1-
Apr


8-
Apr


15
-A


pr


22
-A


pr


29
-A


pr


6-
M


ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay


3-
Ju


n


10
-J


un


17
-J


un


24
-J


un
1-


Ju
l


8-
Ju


l


15
-J


ul


22
-J


ul


29
-J


ul


5-
Aug


12
-A


ug


19
-A


ug


26
-A


ug


2-
Sep


9-
Sep


16
-S


ep


23
-S


ep


30
-S


ep


F
lo


w
 (


cf
s


)


2013
2014
2015
2016
09-15 Avg
2017


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


 
 







 
Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 FY18+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: June 1, 2017 



